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. GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED

{ formerly known as Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Private Limited )

CIN @ U24231GJ1989PLCO12892 PAN : AAACGB908Q GSTIN : 24AAACGB908Q1Z4 @& www.gujaratpolysol.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF MEMBERS OF
THE GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT A SHORTER
NOTICE ON WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 17, 2022 AT 11 A.M. AT REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT PLOT NO. 1734, THIRD PHASE, GIDC,
VAPI, DIST. VALSAD, VAPI, GUJARAT- 396195 INDIA.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. TO CONSIDER, APPROVE AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY TOGETHER WITH THE SCHEDULES AND
—_ NOTES ATTACHED THERETO FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST
MARCH, 2022 ALONG WITH THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AND AUDITORS THEREON.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and Profit & Loss
Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together with the
schedules and notes attached thereto, along with the Reports of Board of Directors
and the Auditors thereon be and are hereby considered, approved and adopted.”

2. TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. SHAILESHKUMAR BALVANTRAI
DESAI (DIN: 00266938), WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AND BEING ELIGIBLE,
OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Shaileshkumar Balvantrai Desai (DIN: 00266938),
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, who retires by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting in accordance with section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and being
eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-reappointed as Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3. TO APPOINT STATUTORY AUDITOR AND FIX THEIR REMUNERATION IN
PLACE OF THE OUTGOING AUDITOR.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof ), M/s. Akkad Mehta & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No./Mem No. 100259W/W100384 and peer Review Certificate No.

ISO (9001/14001) CERTIFIED COMPANY
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012328), having their Office at 302, Navkar Plaza, Bajaj Road, Vile Parle (West),
Mumbai - 400056, India be and is hereby appointed as Statutory Auditor of the
Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of AGM held for the Financial year ending
31st March 2027. (i.e., for FY 2022-23 to 2026-27), in place of the outgoing Auditor,
M/s. J.V. Vasani & Co, Chartered Accountants at a remuneration of Rs. 6,00,000/ -
(Rupees Six Lakhs Only) p. a excluding out of pocket expenses plus applicable taxes
or such other remuneration as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved
by Board of Directors from time to time.”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. TO RATIFY THE REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS FOR FY 2022-23.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provision of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 14 of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provision of the Companies Act 2013 read with rules made thereunder
including statutory modification or re- enactments thereof from time to time, the
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000/- (Rs. One Lakh Fifty
Thousand only) p.a excluding out of pocket expenses plus applicable taxes payable to
M/S P. K. Chatterjee & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm's Registration No.
101833) who have been appointed by the Board of Directors as the Cost Auditor of the
Company, to conduct the cost audit of Company for the F.Y. 2022-23.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Gujarat Polyspl C
Yoo\¥YSos

Dipakkumar Mohaw
Chief Financial Officer™&e2"v

Company Secretary

Date: 29.07.2022
Place: Vapi

Registered Office:

Plot No. 1734, Third Phase, GIDC, Vapi,
Dist. Valsad, Vapi, GJ 396195 IN

CIN: U24231GJ1989PLC012892
Website: www.gujaratpolysol.com
E-mail: compliance@gujaratpolysol.com
Tel: 491 9925100331




NOTES:

i 7

The explanatory statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102
of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to special business to be transacted at the
Meeting is annexed.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy
to attend and, on a poll, to vote instead of himself and the Proxy need not be a
member of the company.

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the
Registered Office of the company not less than forty-eight hours before the time
fixed for the Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company
carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of total share
capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy
and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

A Corporate Member intending to send its authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting in terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to
the company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing such
representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the Meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement
of Meeting and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a member would be
entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the
company. All documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying explanatory
statement are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the company on all
working days of the company between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. upto the date of
the Meeting and at the venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013, the following
Explanatory statement sets out all material facts relating to the business
mentioned in the notice.

Special Business: Item No. 4

As per the provision of. Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Companies
(Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, the proposal for Appointment of Cost Auditor was
considered by the Board in its meeting held on July 29, 2022 and approved the
proposal to appoint M/s. P. K. Chatterjee & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 101833), as Cost Auditor of the Company for the F.Y. 2022-2023 at
the remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000/- (Rupees One lakh Fifty Thousand only). excluding
out of pocket expenses plus applicable taxes. The resolution is being placed before the
Members of the Company for the approval and ratification of the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditor.

None of the Directors, relative of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company are in any way concerned or interested in the resolution proposed under
item no. 4.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited

o~

Dipakkumar MohWni
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Date: 29.07.2022
Place: Vapi

Registered Office:

Plot No. 1734, Third Phase, GIDC, Vapi,
Dist. Valsad, Vapi, GJ 396195 IN

CIN: U24231GJ1989PLC012892
Website: www.gujaratpolysol.com
E-mail: gujaratpolysol@gmail.com

Tel: +91 9925100331




~ |i¢] GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED

[ formerly known as Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Private Limited )

CIN : U24231GJ1989PLC0O12892 PAN : AAACGBO08Q GSTIN : 24AAACGB908Q1Z4 & www.gujaratpolysol.com

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited,

Your directors take pleasure in presenting their 33'® Annual Report on
the business and operations of the company together with the Audited
financial statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(Rs in N!ﬂlion i

Revenue from operatlons | IR 4 347. 61 3, 796 06:"

Other income 17.08 _ 8.26
Totaloomes e = A G060 == RA0N 65
Total expenses 3,836.70 3,261.49
xpfoﬂtsbem R o e 527%99 §42‘8Q

Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 128.07 135.34

{b) Deferred tax 13.22 6.52
bpemtiuns
Profit from Discontinued Dpera‘aons

(after tax]

Eamings per equity share -
Basic - -
Diluted 562 11

BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE
COMPANY: -

Total income of the Company for the FY-2021-22 is 4364.69 million as
compared to the 3804.32 million in previous year depicting an increase
in total income by 14.73% year on year basis.
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ii.

Profit before tax of the Company for the FY-2021-22 is 527.99 million as
against 542.82 million in the previous year depicting a decline by 2.73%.

Profit for the period of the Company stood at 395.47 million as against
400.96 million in the previous year depicting a slightly decline of 1.37%.

DIVIDEND
With a view to provide a cushion for any financial contingencies in future
and to strengthen the financial position of the Company, your directors

have decided not to recommend any dividend for the period under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profits
for FY 2021-22 in the profit and loss account.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

a) Authorised Capital

Following change took place in the authorized share capital of the
company during the year under review.

Existing Authorized Share Capital of Rs. 8,25,00,000/- (Rupees Eight
crore Twenty-Five lacs only) of the Company consisting of 8,15,000
(Eight lacs Fifteen thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each, 7,500
(Seven thousand Five hundred) 10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each and 2,500 (Two thousand Five
hundred) Unclassified Shares of Rs 100/- each reclassified as
Authorized Share Capital of Rs. 8,25,00,000/- (Rupees Eight crore
Twenty-Five lacs only) divided into 8,25,000 (Eight lacs Twenty-Five
thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each wide ordinary resolution
passed at the Extra Ordinary general Meeting held on April 15, 2021.

Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company having a face value
of Rs 100/- each is sub-divided into face value of Rs 10/- each
resulting in Authorised Share Capital of the Company as Rs.
8,25,00,000/- (Rupees Eight Crore Twenty-Five lacs only) divided into
82,50,000 (Eighty-Two lacs Fifty thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten only) each.




iii.

Authorized share capital of the company increased from Rs
8,25,00,000/- (Rupees Eight crore Twenty-Five lacs only) divided into
82,50,000 (Eighty-Two lacs Fifty thousand) equity shares of Rs 10/-
(Ten) only to Rs 35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty-Five crore only)
divided into 3,50,00,000 (Three crore Fifty lacs Only) equity shares of
Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten) only each ranking pari-passu with the existing
shares in all respects.

b) Paid-up Share Capital

Following change took place in the paid-up share capital of the company
during the year under review.

During the period under review, the Company has made bonus issue of
Equity Shares in the ratio of 4:1 (i.e 4 (Four) Bonus equity Share of Rs.
10/- each for every 1 (One) fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
held) by capitalization of its Capital Redemption Reserve account and
Securities Premium Account of the Company. The Bonus Equity Shares
were allotted on 04" September, 2021.

As a result, 1,61,23,800 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each issued
as a bonus share to the existing equity shareholders resulting in total
Paid up share capital of the Company to Rs. 20,15,47,500/- (Rupees
Twenty Crore Fifteen Lacs Forty-Seven Thousand Five hundred only)
divided into 2,01,54,750(Two Crore One Lakh Fifty-Four Thousand Seven
Hundred Fifty only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

c) Issue of equity shares with differential rights

The Company has not issued shares with differential rights during the
year.

d) Issue of sweat equity shares
The Company has not issued Sweat Equity Shares during the year.
e) Issue of employee stock options

The Company has not issued Employee Stock Options during the year.




f) Provision of money by company for purchase of its own shares by
employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees

The Company has not made any provisions of money for purchase of its
own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.

DEMATERIALISATION OF THE EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Your Company’s equity shares are available for dematerialization
through National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited.

Company has appointed M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited as
registrar and share transfer agent of the company.

As of March 31, 2022, 100 % of the equity shares of your Company were
held in demat form.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during
the year.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS DURING AND AFTER THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: -

Following material changes took place in your company during the
financial year.

1. Conversion of the Company from Private Limited to Public Limited i.e.
‘Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Private Limited’ to ‘Gujarat Polysol
Chemicals Limited’,

2. Started Process for the Listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange
and floating of an Initial Public Offer (IPO) of the Company and filled
the Draft Red Hearing Prospectus (DRHP) of the Company with
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on March 24, 2022.




Following changes have occurred between the end of the financial
year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
Report which is having direct impact on financial position of the
Company.

3. Shaileshkumar Balvantrai Desai, the Promoter, Chairman and
Managing Director, has entered into a Deed of assignment dated April
19, 2022 with the Company wherein he has assigned the rights of
exclusive use of the office premises on the 3rd Floor admeasuring
1,026.03 sq. of the building known as Express House situated at Vapi
notified Industrial Estate, GIDC, Vapi, Gujarat to the Company for a
total consideration of ¥38.65 million.

Following changes have occurred between the end of the financial
year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
Report which is not having direct impact on financial position of
the Company but are material developments for the company.

4. Company received In-principal approval for its proposed initial public
offering from the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) wide their approval letter dated April 21, 2022
and April 22, 2022 respectively.

5. Company received final observation letter/approval for its proposed
initial public offering from the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) wide their letter dated July 18, 2022,

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE
GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATION IN FUTURE

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals which affect the going concern status and future
operation of the Company.

DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED

During the year and up to the date of this report following changes took
place in the Compositions of the Board of Directors and Key managerial
Personnel of your Company;
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5. | Kishan Director Independent |
Agarwal Directors
Sandhya Independent | 21-09-2021 | Appointed as
6. | Mahesh Director Independent
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: -

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") read
with Schedule IV to the Act.

Your Company has received annual declarations from all the
Independent Directors of the Company under sub - section (7) of section
149 confirming that they meet with the criteria of Independence as
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 there has been no




change in the circumstances which may affect their status as
Independent Director during the year.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
17 of The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations), , the Company has devised
a Policy for Directors; appointment and remuneration including criteria
for determining qualifications, performance evaluation and other matters
of Independent Directors, Board, Committees and other individual
Directors which include criteria for performance evaluation of both non-
executive directors and executive directors and the policy for Nomination
and Remuneration is available on the website of the company at.
https:/ /www.gujaratpolysol.com/corporate-policy.html

The Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own
performance as well as the evaluation of the working of its committees.
The Board of Directors expresses its satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is
applicable to the Members of the Board and specified employees in the
course of day-to-day business operations of the company. Such code of
conduct has also been placed on the Company’s website. The Code lays
down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to
be followed by the Directors and the designated employees in their
business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the
work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The
Code gives guidance on the expected behavior from an employee in a
given situation and the reporting structure.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company met 14 (Fourteen) times during
the year in respect of which proper notices were given and the
proceedings were properly recorded, signed and maintained in the
Minutes book kept by the Company for the purpose. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.




GENERAL MEETING:

The (Previous) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held
on 31st August, 2021.

S (Five) Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company held
during the year under review on the following dates.

Date of Meeting
15-04-2021
20-08-2021
21-09-2021
18-10-2021
16-02-2022

S EN A=y~
ESINES

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND ITS MEETING: -

1. Audit Committee (AC).

The Audit Committee’s composition meets with the requirement of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions. The Members of the
Audit Committee possesses financial / accounting expertise / exposure.
The Audit Committee comprised of 3 (Three) members as on financial
year end. The Company Secretary is the Secretary and Compliance
officer of the committee. The detail of the composition of the Audit
Committee is as follows:

Eea s Nt oewet ... Designation
. Nomeoithe Moniber | CatsporyafOleuater | C0rs e
Sandhya Mahesh Borase Independent Director Chairperson
Vijay Gopi Kishan Agarwal Independent Director Member
Shaileshkumar Balvantrai Executive Director Member
Desai

The Committee met 2 (Two) times during the year in respect of which
proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded,
signed and maintained in the Minutes book kept by the Company for the
purpose.




2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s Composition meets with
the requirement of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable
provisions. The Members of the Nomination Committee possesses sound
knowledge / expertise / exposure. The Committee comprised of 3
members as on financial year end. The Company Secretary is the
secretary and compliance officer of the committee. The detail of the
composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is as follows:

- . b o of Divantn. | Designation in
e e Cibedon ofDitedior  Commilites
Sandhya Mahesh Borase Independent Director Chairperson
Vijay Gopi Kishan Agarwal Independent Director Member
Jagdish Lalbhai Shah Independent Director Member

The Committee met 3 (Three) times during the year in respect of which
proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded,
signed and maintained in the Minutes book kept by the Company for the
purpose.

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC).

The stakeholders Relationship Committee meets with the requirement of
the section 178 of the Companies act 2013, Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing
Regulation and other applicable provisions. The Stakeholders
Relationship Committee is mainly responsible to review all grievances
connected with the Company's transfer of securities and redressal of
shareholders' / investors' / security holders' complaints. The Committee
comprised of 3 (Three) members as on financial year end. The Company
Secretary is the secretary and compliance officer of the committee. The
detail of the composition of the said committee is as follows:

e = s i Déﬁiﬁﬂﬁ'ﬁon'
o omner | SUon ol DUeStOr. | i Eammitise
Jagdish Lalbhai Shah Independent Director Chairman
Shaileshkumar

Balvantrai Desai Executive Director Member
Umang Shailesh Desai Executive Director Member

No Committee meeting held during the year under review.




4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR).

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meets with the
requirement of the Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act
2013.The Committee comprised of 3 (Three) members as on financial
year end. The company secretary is the secretary and compliance officer
of the committee. The detail of the composition of the said committee is
as fo]lows

_____ = rti...i.. | Designation |
Name of the Member | Category of D__ift_:_cto_r in Committee

Shalleshkumar Balvantral

Desai Executive Director Chairman
Jagdish Lalbhai Shah Independent Director Member
Umang Shailesh Desai Executive Director Member

The Committee met 2 (Two) times during the year in respect of which
proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded,
signed and maintained in the Minutes book kept by the Company for the

purpose.

5. Risk Management Committee (RMC).

The Risk Management Committee meets with the requirement of the
Regulation 21 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, -as
amended (SEBI Listing Regulations). The Committee comprised of 3
(Three) members as on financial year end. The company secretary is the
secretary and compliance officer of the committee. The detail of the
composition of the said committee is as follows.

..... |  Categoryof | Designation
D;rector/Employee in Committee

. Shaﬂeshkumar Balvantrau

Désai Executive Director Chairman
Jagdish Lalbhai Shah Independent Director Member
Umang Shailesh Desai Executive Director Member
Rajesh Shyambadan Singh Chief Executive Officer Member
Uzair Zahidbhai Shaikh President-Operation Member

No Committee meeting held during the year under review.




Further Pursuant to section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has developed and implemented Risk Management Policy to
identify the elements of risk that may threaten the existence of the
Company and measures to be taken to mitigate the said risk elements.

The Risk Management Policy is hosted on the Company’s website
atwww.gujaratpolysol.com.

MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors of the Company are appointed during the
financial year under review, Independent directors discussed and
reviewed the performance of non-independent Directors and the Board as
a whole, performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into
account the views of executive Directors and non-executive Directors,
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the company management and the Board that is necessary for
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties and
expressed their satisfaction on the same.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES: -

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

The following persons are designated as the Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company pursuant to sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as on date of the financial year end:

1. | Shaileshkumar Balvantrai | Chairman & Managing Director
Desai _

2. | Umang Shailesh Desai Whole time Director

3. | Bhavisha Shaileshbhai Desai Whole time Director

4. | Rajesh Shyambadan Singh Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

5. | Dipakkumar Mohanlal | Chief  Financial = Officer &
Sanghani Company Secretary

6. | Khushru Dali Petigara Chief Operating Officer (COQ)




DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES COVERED
UNDER RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,

Name and details of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration as
required under Rule 5(2) is provided under Annexure-A to this Report.

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO
BE SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The company does not have any subsidiary/joint venture /Associate
Company as on the year ended 31st March, 2022.

DEPOSITS

Company has not accepted any public deposit within the Meaning of
section 73, of Companies Act, 2013 read with the companies (Acceptance
& Deposits) Rules, 2014 and there is no outstanding deposit due for re-
payment.

AUDITORS’ AND AUDITORS’ REPORT: -

Statutory Auditor

M/s J. V. VASANI & Co. (Firm Registration No 114283W), Chartered
Accountants, Vapi, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
in Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30t September, 2017 for a
term of 5 (five) consecutive years, up to the sixth Annual General Meeting
from the date of appointment.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the
Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year ended March 31,
2022. Pursuant to provisions of section 143 (12) of the Companies Act
2013, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to
the Audit Committee during the year under review.

The Board has duly reviewed the Statutory Auditors’ Report on the
Accounts. The observations and comments, appearing in the Auditors’
Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further explanation /
clarification by the Board of Directors as provided under section 134 of
the Act




The term of M/s. J. V. Vasani & Co, is getting completed on the ensuing
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company and are not eligible for
reappointment as a Statutory Auditor of the Company.

The Company proposed the Appointment of the M/s. Akkad Mehta & Co
LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No./Mem No.
100259W/W100384 and peer Review Certificate No. 012328), having
their Office at 302, Navkar Plaza, Bajaj Road, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai -
400056, India, as a Statutory Auditor of the Company in the ensuing
AGM of the Company.

The Company has received written consent cum eligibility letter along
with certificate from Auditor under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, to the effect that their Appointment as a Statutory Auditor is
within the prescribed limits and are not disqualified for appointment as
an Auditor and further, they are independent of management.

Cost Auditor

The Company has maintained cost records for its products as specified
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Act. M/s P.K. Chatterjee & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 101833) was appointed to carry out the cost audit for
applicable products for the financial year 2021-22.

The Board of Directors of the Company has re-appointed M /s P. K.
Chatterjee & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.
101833) as a Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23
and the remuneration proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditor, subject to
ratification by the members of the Company at the ensuing AGM, would
not exceed Rs 1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand only).

Internal Auditor

The Company has robust internal audit system for assessment of audit
findings and its mitigation. The Internal Audit function covers all the
stores, inventory audit, stock takes, audit for project related accounts,
corporate accounts etc.

M/s. HRK CorpAdvice Private Limitedwas appointed as an Internal
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 by the Board and
the Internal Auditor directly reports to the Board of Directors for
functional matters.




The Board of Directors reviews internal audit report and controls at its
meetings. Company’s internal controls are commensurate with the size
and operations of the business. Continuous internal monitoring
mechanism ensures timely identification and redressal of issues.

Secretarial Auditor

As per the provisions of Section 204 of The Companies Act 2013 read
with applicable rules, Till the end of the financial year 2020-21
secretarial audit was not applicable to the company, but during the
financial year 2021-22, our company converted from private limited to
the public limited, The Secretarial Audit Report provisions become
applicable to the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Nitesh
Parasmal Shah, Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the
Secretarial Auditors in their report for the financial year ended March 31,
2022.

Secretarial Audit Report for the year is attached as Annexure-B to this
report.

DETAILS OF REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT OR ANNUAL
REPORT:

No revision of the Financial Statements or Annual Report has been made
during Financial Year ending March 31, 2022 neither in any of the
preceding three Financial Years.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires dividends that
are not encashed/claimed by the shareholders for a period of seven
consecutive years, to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF).

During the year under consideration, no amount was due for transfer to
IEPF in accordance with Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013,




There are no instances of Declaration of the Dividend in past by the
company and accordingly the disclosure pertaining to the details of
unclaimed dividend along with their due dates for transfer to IEPF are
not applicable.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with rules framed there under, the Company falls under the criteria
mentioned under section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for
Corporate Social Responsibility. The Company has formed CSR
Committee as required under Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company has incurred expenditure during 2021-22 in Corporate
Social Responsibility activities as mentioned under Schedule VII of the
Companies Act 2013.

Annual report on CSR activities is enclosed as Annexure-C to this report.
The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the

Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism
Pursuant to the Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations and SEBI (PIT) Regulation 2015.). No personnel have been
denied access to the Audit Committee for the said purpose to report
genuine concerns.

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical,
moral and legal conduct of business operations. The Whistle Blower
Policy/ Vigil Mechanism is hosted on the Company’s website at.
www.gujaratpolysol.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE
UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Particulars of the loans given, investment made or guarantee given or
security provided and the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or
security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient of the loan or




guarantee or security are provided in Notes to the Financial Statements if
any.

No loan taken by the Company during the year from Directors and their
relatives and no outstanding balances as on the Balance Sheet date for
the same.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH
THE RELATED PARTIES

Your Company has entered into certain transactions with the related
partiecs and the details of the same have been given in Note No: 48
attached to the Audited Financial Statements. The Company has entered
into material Related Party Transactions during the vear hence, details of
the same is given in form AOC-2 and attached herewith as Annexure-D
to this report.

The Board of Directors approved a policy on related party transactions
which is available on the Company's website at the web link:

https://www.gujaratpolysol.com/corporate-policy.html

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company’s internal financial control systems with reference to the
Financial Statements are adequate and commensurate with the nature
and size of the Company and it ensures:

¢ timely and accurate financial reporting in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

e optimum ufilization, efficient monitoring, timely maintenance and
safety of its assets.

* compliance with applicable laws, regulations and management
policies.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Continuous effort is put in to improve the working environment with a
focus on employee well-being and capability building enabling them to
perform their best for the Company. We develop global platform for
leaders at regular intervals as part of our commitment to engage and
retain talent. We provide robust leadership development efforts to home
employee skills and help keep the Company ahead of the curve. People




are our real strength and therefore while pursuing best-in-class
performance; the Company is significantly increasing its investment in
its employees with training and development.

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD
TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE
PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED
DURING THE YEAR.

The Board of Directors are collectively responsible for selection of a
member on the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company follows a defined criterion for identifying, screening,
recruiting and recommending candidates for election as a Director on the
Board. Board of directors is of opinion that Independent Directors
appointed during the financial year possess a requisite qualification,
experience and expertise (including the proficiency) which will help in the
development of the Company.

DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION

According to provision of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
as per terms framed wunder the Articles of Association, Mr.
Shaileshkumar Balvantrai Desai, Chairman & Managing Director of the
Company is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. The
Board of Directors on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has recommended his re-appointment.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134 read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of energy,
and technology absorption apply to the Company are given below:

A. Conservation of energy-

a. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: N.A

b. the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of
energy: N.A

c. the capital investment on energy conservation equipments: N.A




B. Technology absorption-
a. the efforts made towards technology absorption: N.A

b. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution: NA

c. the Company has not imported technology from abroad

d. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NA
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo: -

a. Foreign Exchange outgo (CIF Import): 1654,98 million

b. Foreign Exchange Earnings during the year (FOB Export): 82.80
million

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013, it is hereby confirmed:

a. that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b. that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and the
profit or loss of the Company for the period ended 31.03.2022;

c. that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d. that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis and




e. that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE: -

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace
and has adopted a policy on prevention prohibition and redressal of
sexual harassment at the workplace in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules there under for the prevention and
redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at the workplace.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this

policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received
and disposed of during the year:

a) Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year: -NIL
b) Number of complaints received during the year: - NIL
c) Number of complaints disposed of during the year: - NIL

d) Number of cases pending at the end of the year: -NIL

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED
UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC).

No any application filed for corporate insolvency resolution process, by
any financial or operational creditor against the Company or by the
company itself under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC)
before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT).

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The applicable Secretarial Standards relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied
by your Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS




The Company is required to maintain cost records as specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the said cost records are made and
maintained.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statement is not applicable to the Company.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT - 7 in accordance with
Section 92(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, will be made available on the website of the
Company at www.gujaratpolysol.com.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors’ wishes to place on record its sincere thanks to all the
Customers, Suppliers, Employees and Government Authorities for
extending support to your Company. The Board also places on record its
sincere appreciation of the contribution made by all the stakeholders for
placing their faith and trust on the Board.

Place: Vapi By Order of the Board of Directors
Date: 29.07.2022 For Gujarat Polys icals Limited

o)
Shaileshkumar B\l\@’besai
Chairman And Managing Director
DIN: 00266938




DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES COVERED UNDER RULE 5(2) OF

ANNEXURE-A

THE COMPANIES

(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

|

[ Relation
with
Remun The Perce | director or
eration Nature of - Date of ntage | manager of
. . receive | employment, O.ﬂmr..mnmﬁ commenc & 8¢ Last of the
No Names of the Designation of ions and of s
employees the employee; d whether experienc ement of such | €MPloym | equit company
’ contractual or 3 employm Extiis] ent y and if so,
(Rs in otherwise ent; m.. share name of
Lakhs) oyee s held such
director or
manager:
South
Raisth Chief Executive PhD.in | 01-12- | 53 | [ndia
1 mrw.m.mdwmn_mb Officer (CEO) 137.81 Regular Chemistry 2014 Vedrs Cashew . NIL N. A
Singh Corporati
on
Father of
: Chairman & = Umang Desai
2 %Mwmmﬂ:hﬂwwmm_ Managing 60.00 Regular B. Com _Wmm- <M%Hm N. A 66.88 and
Director Bhavisha
Desai
Jaysynth
Uzair Zahidbhai President - 01-10- 48 Dyestuff
3 Shaikh Operations o Kegien Bec 2006 | Year | (India) | ML d
Lid
Otsuka
; PhD Chemical
4 | Zubair Shaikh WMM%M_ 37.81 Regular (Chemistr omwmw- oo | s (India) | NIL N. A
= y), MSC Pvt Ltd.




Son of

Shailesh
Umang Shailesh Wholetime 01-01- 39 Desai and
S Desai Director 36.00 Regular B Lom 2012 Years R 16.51 Brother of
Bhavisha
Desai
Team
; = 27-12- 41 Ferro
6 Rakesh Sharma | President- Sales | 25.45 Regular B. Com 2011 Yeuis Alloys NIL N. A
Pvt. Ltd
Daughter of
i Shailesh
7 | Bhavisha Desai Winoletizte 20.70 Regular BDS io-De o2 N. A 4.6 | 'Desaiand
Director 2021 Years :
Sister of
Umang Desai
Chief Financial Froptisto
Officer *iot DM
Dipakkumar Co mHT CMA, CS, 01-02- 34 Sanghani
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: Secretary & 2021 Year
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1.

ANNEXURE -C

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Activities for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

As per CSR Policy, the Company contributes in the activities covered in Schedule
VII to the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. The Company has
formed a CSR policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Detailed CSR Policy of the Company is uploaded on the website of the
Company.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee as on End of Financial Year:
Number of r:::::;:g‘;f
Sr, Name of Merabes Designation in meetmgs abbended
No Committee held during A
during the
the year
: year
1 Shaﬂ_eshkumar Balvantrai Chuirpersom 5 2
Desai
Umang Shailesh Desai ,
2 | (w.e.f 14.02.2022) T e 2 *
3 Jagdish Lalbhai Shah Member 5 N A
" | (w.ef19.10.2021) '
4 Sandhya Mahesh Borase Member 2 N. A
" | (Up to 19.10.2021)
Bhavisha Shaileshbhai Member N. A
5. | Desai (21.09.21 to 2
14.02.2022)

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed. Disclosed on the website of the
company: www.gujaratpolysol.com .

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not
Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any

Sl

; Financial year
No.

Amount available for set-
off

from preceding financial

years (in Rs)

Amount required to be
setoff

for the financial year, if

any (in Rs)

Not Applicable

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs 32,35,50,429/-

7. Particulars of CSR:




a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs
64,71,009/-

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: Nil

¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
d) (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c¢): Rs.64,71,009/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (In Rs)

Total Amount Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund
Spent for the to Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule VII as per

Financial Year. as per section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5).
(In Rs.) Date of Name of the Date of

Amount. Amount.
| transfer, Fund transfer
Rs. 67,28,512 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00




(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) [ (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Amount
Item transferre
from the Amount d to
list of Amount | spent in | Unspent
Name | activitie = Local : . allocate |  the CSR B . Yode.of
Sl Location of Project Implementatio | Implementation -
of the s area . d current Account
No 2 s the duratio . n- Through
Projec in (Yes/No) 7 for the | financia for the * 4
. project. n 5 : Direct Implementing
t Schedul P project 1 Year project as (Yes/No) Agen
e VII (in Rs.). (in per ! °y
to the Rs.). Section
Act. 135(6) (in
Rs.).
S = CSR
Stat | Distric Nam Registratio
e t e
_ n number
Not Applicable
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) _[(2) (3) (4 [(5) (6) (7) (8) J
Item from ; i
the list of Location of the Amount Mode of Emwumn.oﬂnﬂﬂmouu )
o Local . Mode of Through implementing
Name of activities project. spent for g
SL area implementation - agency.
the in the :
No. ; (Yes/ . Direct
Project schedule No) project (Yes/No)
VII to the : P (In Rs.) v CSR
Act. State District Name registration
number
Savli Taluka Training to Savli Taluka
1. Rifle promote No Gujarat | Vadodara 5,00,000 No Rifle CSR00005679
Association Sports Association




; Ashadham
g, [AERBMUAIN S | BemOMNE | o | g | s 50,00,000 No Seva Mandal, | CSR00024417
Mandal education Vapi
Apprentices
Training over ; . )
3. | andabovethe | Skilland |y | o iarat | Valsad 12,28,512 Yes Wﬁﬁ by NA
Statutory Training ompany
requirements.
TOTAL 67,28,512

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs 67,28,512/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. No Particular Amount (In Rs)
(1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 64,71,009
(1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 67,28,512
(i11) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 2,57,503
i) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if 8611

any ’
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 2,66,114




9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. Preceding Amount Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund specified | Amount remaining
No. Financial transferred to in the under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if | to
Year. Unspent CSR reporting any. be spent in
Account under Financial Year succeeding
section 135 (6) (in Rs.). financial years. (in
(in Rs.) Rs.)
Name of the | Amount (in Date of
Fund Rs). transfer.
Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 9)
Sl Project Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. ID. the Year in duration. amount spent on the | amount project -
Project. which the allocated project in spent Completed
project was for the the at the end of | /Ongoing.
commenced. project reporting reporting
(in Rs.). Financial | Financial
Year (in Year. (in Rs.)
Rs).

Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

(asset-wise details).
a. Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). —

b. Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. —

asset so created or acquired




c. Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address
ete. -

d. Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s),
Applicable

Shaileshkumar Balvantrai Desai




FORM NO. AOC-2

ANNEXURE-D

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by
the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s

length basis.
8, = Particulars | Details |
No. eae e e = e o
a) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship
b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transaction
c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
e) |Justification for entering into such contracts or NIL
. arrangements or transactions
f) Date of approval by the Board
g) | Amount paid as advances, if any
h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in
General meeting as required under first proviso to

section 188




2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis.

Sr. | Name(s) of the related | Nature of | Duration of the | Salient terms of | Date(s) of | Amount
No | party and nature of|contracts/Arrangeme | contracts/ the contracts or | approval by | paid as
relationship nts / transactions: arrangements arrangements or | the Board, if | advances
/ transactions: | transactions any: , if any:
including the
value, if any:
1. | Shaileshkumar Balvantrai | Agreement to
Desai Purchase of the
R w%mmi tom. Related | o asplicable | Re 8.86Crore | 16-08-2621 mmwmwm%o
Managing Director of the
Company)
2. | Shaileshkumar Balvantrai | Agreement to Sale the
Desai property to the Related
Party. Not Applicable Rs. 50.00
Bromoter, Chaisman & PP Rs. 20.06 Crore | 16-08-2021 e
Managing Director of the
Company)
3. | M/s. Bhavisha Industries Memorandum of
understanding to Rs. 45.00
(Proprietorship  firm  of | Purchase of the | Not Applicable Rs. 19.74 Crore 16-08-2021 H. :.
Whole time Director of the | property from the firm. -
| Company) PSRN
2 \C
% S| ww® )3
= & 2
e, B
e *®

Place: Vapi
Date: 29.07.2022

Shaileshkumar Balvantrai Desai
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: '00266938
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J. V. VASANI & Co.
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)‘ Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of
Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Ltd (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in’
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not
provide a separate opinion on this matter. We have determined the matter described as follows to
be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter Auditor’s response

Discontinued Operations and Asset held for | Our audit procedures included but not limited to:
sale in relation to transfer of Lease hold
Land and Building and Purchase of assets | Obtained an understanding and assessed the
from related Party: effectiveness of process followed by the
management in assessing the appropriateness of

discontinued operations and in relation to
Purchase of Assets. 2

Evaluated the basis of the management’s
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assessment of treating the Land and Building and
identified assets as Discontinued operations in
accordance with the applicable accounting
standards

Performed procedures on the disclosures
relating to discontinued operations and purchase
of assets from related party made in the financial
statements for assessing the compliance with
disclosure requirements.

Emphasis of matter

a. We draw attention to Note no. 53of the financial statement which describes management's
assessment of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the operations and financial results of
the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in these matters.
Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The “Other
Information” comprises of the Report ofthe Board of Directors, Management Discussions and
Analysis, Corporate Governance, but does not includefinancial statements and our Auditor’s
Report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial statements




that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the Financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the ability of
the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Company.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an
Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they can reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management and Board of
Directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of use of the going concern basis of accounting by the
Management and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in the
Financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s Report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures and whether the financial statements repre the underlying transactions




f. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
~ circumstances, we determine that a matter must not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so will reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the attached Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2022,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2022, from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.




With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financialposition in its
financial statements. Refer Note 47 to the financial statement.

ii. The Company did not have any long-termcontracts including derivative contractsfor
which there were any materialforeseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in note to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) of Rule 11(e) contain
any material mis-statement.




V. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year.

For J. V. Vasani& Co.
Chartered Accountant
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 114283W

i
A

N fmr=
Jigesh V. Vasani
Partner
Membership Number: 047954
UDIN: 22047954ANVOPD3696

Place:Vapi
Date: July 29, 2022




Annexure A
Companies Auditor’s Report Order (CARO) rules, 2020

ANNEXURE(A) REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN
DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022.

In terms of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020, issued by the Central Government of India, in
terms of section 143(11) of The Companies Act, 2013, we further report, on the matters specified in
paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order, that:-

1) FIXED ASSET:
(i) (a)The company ismaintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(b) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) The Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals.

(iii) The title deeds of immovable properties shown in the financial statements are held in the
name of the company.

(iv) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment or Intangibleassets or both
during the year.

(v)No proceedings have been initiated against the company for holding benamiproperty under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder and the details
have been appropriately disclosed in the financial statements.

2) INVENTORY:
(i) Physical verification of inventory has beenconducted at reasonable intervals bymanagement.
In our opinion, the coverage and procedure by the management is appropriate. The
aggregate of discrepancies of 10% or more in each class of inventory noticed have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(ii) The quarterly returns/statements filed by the company with banks/financial institutions are
in agreement with the books of the company.

3) LOAN GIVEN BY COMPANY:
The company has not made investments, provided any guarantee or security granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, LLPs, or any other
parties.

4) LOAN TO DIRECTOR AND INVESTMENT BY THE COMPANY:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not advanced any loan and not madeloan and investmenton which provisions of Section 185
&186 of the Companies Actare applicable.




5) DEPOSITS:
According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any
deposit in terms of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act,2013and hence reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

6) COST RECORDS:
The company is required to maintain cost records as prescribed by the Central Government
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of specified products of the Company
and the company has complied with the provisions the Companies Act, 2013.

7) STATUTORY DUES:
(i) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues Goods and Service
tax, Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess Income-tax, and other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed statutory dues.

(ii)There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax Provident
Fund Income-tax Sales Tax Service Tax duty of Custom duty ofExcise Value Added Tax Cess
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March,31 2022 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to records of the company, there are no statutory dues which havenot been deposited on
account of any dispute except the following:

Period to Amount
Natae of which the Forum where aid under
the Nature of Dues Amount (Rs.) . . P
amount dispute is pending Protest
Statute
relates (Rs.)
Customs, Excise and
Central The issue pertains F.Y.2015-16 Service Tax
Excise Act, | ;] Valugtion 1,42,99,944 to Appellate 4,76,670
1944 F.Y.2017-18 Tribunal,
Ahmedabad
Income
Tax Act TDS demands 22,57,150 FaY- 200709, TDS Ward,Valsad -
TO 2011-12
1961
Disallowance u/s. o
Commissioner of
36(1)(va) on
Income aceaiint of Income Tax
Tax Act . 1,21,580 (Appeals) -
1961 coenr;r:l:u(l;;g)er:sof FahaiLT-48 National Faceless
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** During the year under consideration Search u/s 132 under Income tax Act, 1962 was conducted
from November 18, 2021 to November 21, 2021 on the Company, its related parties and on
Directors. No declaration has been given in such Search conducted.

8) DECALARATION OF INCOME:
There are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account to be surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

9) REPAYMENT OF LOAN:
(i) According to information and explanations given to us and records of the company
examined by us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues any financial
institution or bank or debenture holders.

(ii) The company has notbeen declared as a willful defaulter by any bank orfinancial institution
or other lender.

(iii) The term loans have been utilized for the purposes for which they were obtained.
(iv) The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

(v) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on accountof or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(v) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

10) UTILIZATION OF INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER (IPO) AND FURTHER PUBLIC OFFER (FPO):
(i) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied by the company for the purposes for which the same were obtained.
The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments).

During the year under consideration company has filed Draft Red Hearing Prospectus (DRHP)
with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) and also obtained the in principle approval and observation
letter for the same as on date and has planning of listing of share in the stock exchange in
future.

(i) The Company has not made any preferential allotmentor private placement of shares/fully
or partially oroptionally convertible debentures during the yearunder consideration.

11) REPORTING OF FRAUD:
(i) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanationsgiven to us by
the management, we report that no fraud by the company or on the company by its
officers/employeeshave not been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(ii) During the year No any report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act
hasbeen filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government.




12) NIDHI COMPANY:
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

13) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for
all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements etc., if any, as required by the applicable Indian
accounting standards

14) INTERNAL AUDIT SYSTEM: )
(i) During the year under consideration and as per the information and explanations the
company hasmaintained the proper an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

(i) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit and till date in
determining the nature timing and extent of our audit procedures.

15) NON CASH TRANSACTION:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or the
person connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable.

16) REGISTER UNDER RBI ACT:
The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

17) CASH LOSS:
In our opinion and according to the information, explanations and previous financial
statement given to us the company hasnot incurredany cash losses in the current Financial
Year and immediately preceding Financial Year.

18) RESIGNATION OF STATUTORY AUDITOR:
As per the Information and documentation produced before us during the year under
consideration there has notbeen any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

19) FINANCIAL RATIOS:
On the basis of the financial ratios ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions nothing has come to our
attention which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We however state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

20) CORPORATE SOCIAL REPONSIBILITY:
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The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act or special account incompliance with the

provision of sub- section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly reporting under
Clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

21) QUALIFICATION AND ADVERSE REMARKS:

As per our opinion explanation and information given to us there are no qualifications or
adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order
(CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

For J. V. Vasani& Co.
Chartered Accountants
CAIl Firm R\egistration Number: 114283W

|gﬁt'-§fﬁl—. Vasani)
artner

M. No. 047954
UDIN: 22047954ANVOPD3696
Date: July 29, 2022

Place: VAPI
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Annexure B

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in para 2(f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report
of even date.

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gujarat Polysol Chemicals
Limited (the Company) as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the policies of the Company, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls of the Company over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAl and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

The internal financial control over financial reporting of a company is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. Internal financial control over financial reporting of a Company includes those policies and
procedures that i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
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reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements
in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of Management and Directors of
the Company; and iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the assets of the Company that can have a material
effect on the Standalone Financial Statement

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2022, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For J. V. Vasani& Co.
Chartered Accountant
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 114283W

ghesh V. Vasani
Partner
Membership Number: 047954
UDIN:22047954ANVOPD3696

Place: Vapi
Date: July 29, 2022
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GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLCO12892)
Balance Sheet as at 315t March,2022

(X in million)
Partiulirs Note No. As at 31st March , As at 31st March, As at 1st April,
2022 2021 2020 |
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 782.89 587.82 469.61
(b) Investment Property 6 - 174.70 177.00
(c) Other Intangible assets 7 1.66 127 -
(d) Financial Assets 8
{i) Investments 0,00 0.00 0.00
(iif) Other Financial Assets 18.45 15.98 13.41
(g} Other non-current assats 9 4533 10.57 3.88
Total non-current assets 848.33 790.34 663.90
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 471.16 405,12 328.85
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 1,524.84 1,679.41 1,479.06
(1i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 652.30 893 13.48
(iii) Other bank balances 13 58.62 40.05 5871
(iv) Loans 14 5.13 2.56 6.27
(v) Other Financial Assets 15 2167 11.30 10.80
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 16 - - 12.14
(d) Other current assels 17 413.11 207.08 92,21
Total current assets 2,556.84 2,354.46 2,001.53
Assets classified as held for sale 18 173.55 - -
Total assets 3,578.72 3,144.79 2,665.43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 201.55 40.31 26.39
(b) Other Equity 20 1,610.87 1,381.29 909.49
Total equity 1,812.42 1,421.60 935.88
Liabilities
{1) Nan-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 21 419.11 377.94 340.27
(b) Provisions 22 0.23 0.23 0.32
{c ) Deferred tax liabilities (Met) 23 47.71 35.21 28.89
Total non-current liabilities 467.06 413.38 369.48
(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 24 51141 393.47 354.17
(ii) Trade payables 25
{A) due to micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(B) due to other than micro enterprises
_ 723.93 886.95 899,06
and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 26 14,38 8.94 §1.67
(b) Other current liabilities 27 39.97 16.41 14.29
(c) Provisions 28 3.16 1.27 0.87
{d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 29 638 Fell :
Total Current Liabilities 1,299.24 1,309.81 1,360.07
Total Equity and Liahilities 3,578.72 3,144.79 2,665.43
The Accompaning Notes 1-60 form an integral 1-60
[part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
For J. V. Vasani & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants A Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited
FRN.NO : 1\14233w " o
@l‘ p D/
esh Vasani Shailesh Desai Uma sai
Managing Director Whole Time Director
embership No.: 047954 DIN: 00266938
Place: Vapi Place: Vapi
Date: 29-07-2022 Datg:
UDIN : 22047954ANVOPD3696 a 1
Chief Executive Offigg "Vef0 & Company Secretary
Membership No: 50568
Place: Vapi Place: Vapi 14

Date: 29-07-2022 Date: 29-07-2022




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March,2022

(Xin million)
2 Note For the year ended 31st For the year ended
Particulars
No. March, 2022 31st March, 2021*
I |Revenue from operations 30 4,347.61 3,796.06
Il |Other income 31 17.08 8.26
Il |Total income (1+11) 4,364.69 _3,804.32
IV |EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 32 3,001.01 2,233.19
Purchase of Stock in trade 33 217.31 555.64
Changes in Inventories of finished goods, Stock- in- trade and work-in-| 34 (41.33) (14.09)
progress
Employee benefits expense 35 133.06 70.88
Finance costs 36 79.40 77.37
Depreciation and amortisation expense 37 39.59 30.88
Other expenses 38 407.66 307.62
Total expenses (IV) 3,836.70 3,261.49
V' |Profit before tax (111-1V) 527.99 542.82
VI [Tax expense: 39
128.07 135.34
13.22 6.52
VIl |Profit for the Year from Continuing Operations (V-VI) 386.70 400.96
Vil |Profit from discontinued operations 40 1172 -
IX |Tax expense of discontinued operations 2,95
X |Profit from Discontinued Operations (after tax)(VIlI-1X) 8.77 -
XI [Profit After Tax (VII+X) 395.47 400.96
Xl |Other comprehensive income 41
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.16) (0.81)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be 0.54 0.20
reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss . -
(i} Income tax relating to items that will be - -
reclassified to profit or loss
XNl |Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (XI+XII) 393.86 400.35
XIV [Earnings per equity share Face Value Rs. 10 Fully Paid Up 42
Basic in Rs. 19.62 2111
Diluted in Rs 19.62 19.89
Significant Accounting Policies 1
The Accompaning Notes 1-60 form an integral part of these Financial
Statements

* Restated as per Ind AS on adoption of Ind AS
As per our report of even date attached
For J. V. Vasani & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited

5
Shailesh Desai Uma esai
hole Time Director

Membership No.: 047954
Place: Vapi P
Date: 29-07-2022 : 29- 3022 . 9-07-2022

UDIN : 22047954ANVOPD3696

Company Secretary
Membership No: 50568
Place: Vapi Place: Vapi
Date: 29-07-2022 Date: 29-07-2022




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
{Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) {CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(X in million)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended
Particulars March, 2022 31st March, 2021*
[A] |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax from continuing operations 527.99 542.82
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Profit from discontinued operations 11.72 -
Non-Cash ltems 4428 31.84
Non Operating Items 67.72 73.57
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan (2.16) (0.81)
Operating Profit/(Loss) before changes in Working Capital 649.55 647.42
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in Non Current / Current Assets:
Inventories (66.04) (76.27)
Trade receivables 149.45 (200.35)
Other financials assets (15.45) 1.03
Other non financial assets (204.29) (114.87)
Increase / (Decrease) in Non Current / Current Liabilities:
Trade Payables (163.02) (12.11)
Other Financial Liabilities 5.45 (31.10)
Other Non Financial Liabilities & Provisions 25.45 2.42
381.09 216.17
Cash Flow from operations after changes in Working Capital
Income tax (paid)/ Refund {124.11) (120.44)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 256.98 95.73
[B] |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP) (275.98) (156.45)
Sale/Adjustment of Property, plant and equipment 12.61 0.74
Interest received (finance income) 2.28 3.77
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents (22.24) 18.66
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (283.33) (133.28)
[C] |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Impact due to business combination - 85.37
Proceeds / (Repayment) from borrowing (net) 159.12 76.97
Interest & financial charges (79.40) (129.34)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C ) 79.72 33.00
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 53.37 (4.56)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8.93 13.48
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 62.30 8.93
Notes:
1 |Cash & Bank Balances consists of the following:
Cash & Cash Equivalents
a. Balances with Banks 61.26 7.94
b. Cash on hand 1.04 0.99
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 62.30 8.93
2 |The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method” set out in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) - 7 “Statement of
Cash Flows”

The Accompaning Notes 1-60 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

* Restated as per Ind AS on adoption of Ind AS

As per our report of even date attached

For J.
Chartered Accountants

FRN

UDIN : 22047954ANVOPD3696

@g .
ner

Membership No.: 047954
Place: Vapi
Date:

V. Vasani & Co.

0 : 1]‘4283W

st Vasani

29-07-2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited

=

Shailesh Desai

Managlng Directg

Place: Vapi
Date: 29-07-2022

r

Umahg Desai

Whole Time Director

Membership No: 50568

Place: Vapi
Date: 29-07-2022

16




GLIJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022
A. Equity Share Capital {% in million)
Particulars Equity Share Capital
|Balance as at 1st April, 2018 26.19
Additions/deletions -
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 26.19
Issue of Equity Shares 0.20
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 26.39
Issue of Equity Shares pursuant ta Private Placement {Refer
Note: 51) 1397
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 40.31
[Issue of Bonus shares 161.24
{Balance as at 31st March, 2022 20155
B. Dther Equity (% in million)
Reserve & Surplus Total Other
Capital Securities Premi Retained |Revaluation| Capital General Equity
Particulars reserve - Account Earnings Reserve |Redemption| subsidy Reserve
Common Reserve
Control
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 (339.87) 184.16 264.76 174,76 1.50 28,78 627.93
Movement during the year:
Profit for the year 128.00 - - 128.00
Additions / {deductions) (48.21) (48.79)
Remeasuremenl benefit of deﬂned beneﬂt plans [D 11| (0.11)
o % T Gl 4 ﬁ; L i =R i T PR e
ualan:e asal 1st April 2019 (388.08) 184.16 393 87 174.76 2B.78 708.25
Movement during the year:
Praofit for the year . 3.48 200.80 - - . 204.28
Additions / (deductions) (3.39) - - - - - (3.39)
Remeasuremem benefit of deﬂnad henefll plans - - 0.34 - - - 0.39
—_—— rp e e e e BRI -
Balance as at 1st Apl‘ll 2020 (391.46) 187.64 555,01 174.76 1.50 28.78 909.49
Movement during the year: - - - - - -
Profit for the year - 299.34 400,96 - - - 700.30
Additions / (deductions) 85.37 - - - - ~ [227.89)
Remeasuremenl beneﬂt of deﬁned benef‘: plans - . 0.60 - - (0.60
Balancs as at lsl Aprl! 1021 (306.10) 486.98 995.36 174.76 1.50 28.78 1,381.29
Movement during the year: - - - - - .
Profit for the year - - 395.47 - . 395.47
Utilised for issue of Bonus shares - (159.74) - - (1.50) (161.24)
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans - - (1.61) - - {1.61)
Difference of Employee Benefit paid and booked - - (3.04) - - = (3.09)

The Accompaning Notes 1-60 form an integral
part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For 1. V. Vasani & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited

%-4'

Shailesh Desai u ‘éesal
Managing Director Whu & Time Director

Memhershlp No.: 04795
Place: Vapi
Date: 29-07-2022

UDIN : 22047954ANVOPD3696
ership No: 50568

pface: Vapi
Date: 29-07-2022

Place: Vapi
Date: 29-07-2022




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)
(CIN: U24231GJ1989PLC012892)

1. Corporate Information

Gujarat Polysol Chemicals Limited (the Company) is a Large enterprise and located in notified
industrial estate, GIDC Vapi, District Valsad, Gujarat, India doing manufacturing activity of agro
chemicals, construction chemicals & leather chemicals etc. and two other manufacturing units at
Sarigam, District Valsad, Gujarat & Dadra, Union Territories of Daman and Diu & Dadra Nagar
Haveli.

The Financial Statements have been authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution passed in
Board Meeting held on 29" July 2022.

2 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 11l to the Companies
Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable to the financial statements.

3 Basis of Preparation of Accounts

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost basis,
except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value

Certain financial assets (except trade receivables and contract assets which are measured at
transaction cost) and liabilities (including derivative) are measured at fair value.

Defined benefits obligations at present value.

4 Significant Accounting Policies.
First Time Adopter (FTA)

The Company adopted IND AS for the first time during the financial year 31* March, 2022. Date of
transition is 1* April, 2020. The Company has restated the financials of financial year 2020-21.

a. Functional Currency.
The financial statements are presented in INR which is also the Company's functional currency and
all values are rounded to the nearest million (INR 000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

b. Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Com pany. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the tax determination is made. The assessment
of probability involves estimation of a number of factors including future taxable income.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

A liability in respect of defined benefit plans is recognised in the balance sheet, and is measured as
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of the
plan’s assets. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is based on expected future
payments which arise from the fund at the reporting date, calculated annually by independent
actuaries. Consideration is given to expected future salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Refer note 44 for details of the key assumptions used in
determining the accounting for these plans

Useful economic lives of Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment as disclosed are depreciated over their useful economic lives.
Management reviews the useful economic lives at least once a year and any changes could affect
the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying value.

Intangible assets

Intangible development costs are capitalised as and when technical and commercial feasibility of
the asset is demonstrated, and future economic benefits are probable. The costs which can be
capitalised include laboratory testing expenses that are directly attributable to development of the
asset. Research costs are expensed as incurred. Intangible assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of Intangible assets
has been disclosed in note 7.

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
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other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are Corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share price for publicly
traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Summary of Significant accounting policies

a. Business Combination

Business Combination involving entities or businesses under common control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the
same party or parties both before and after the business combination and the control is not
transitory. Business Combination involving entities or businesses under common control shall be
accounted for using the pooling of interest method based on the predecessor values retrospectively
for all periods presented.

The pooling of interest method is considered to involve the following:
(i) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

(ii) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
The only adjustments that are made are to harmonies accounting policies and tax
adjustments if any.

(iii) The components of other equity of the acquired companies are added to the same
components within other equity except that any share capital and investments in the books
of the acquiring entity is cancelled and the differences, if any, is adjusted in the opening
retained earnings.

(iv) The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated
as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in
the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information shall be
restated only from that date.

b. Current Vs. Non-Current classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of Assets and Liabilities based on
current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

® Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period A liability is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period
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All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

c. Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customer is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls
the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

1) Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer, generally on dispatch/ delivery of the goods or terms as agreed with
the customer. The normal credit term is 30 to 180 days from the date of dispatch. The company
considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the
transaction price for the sale of goods, the company considers the effects of variable consideration,
the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the customer (if any

(i)vVariable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at the time of completion of performance obligation and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with cash discount in accordance with the company policy. The cash discount component gives rise
to variable consideration.

(ii)Volume rebates

The Company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of
products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.

(iii)Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods transferred to the customer. If
the Company performs its obligation by transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional.

(a) Trade receivables A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
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consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in (Financial instruments —
initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

2) Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

3) Export Incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of
exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit and loss due to its operating nature.

4) Dividend

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

5) Insurance Claims

Claims receivable on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is virtually
certain of their ultimate collection

6) Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted on the basis of lease terms and is included
in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

d. Foreign Currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. Transactions and Balances Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the
Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition.

However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognitiqa.of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of
ARSAN/ ¢

22




the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC| or
statement of profit or loss are also recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

e. Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participants that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as under, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

* level1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Llevel 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. The management
comprises of the Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets. Involvement of external valuers is
decided upon annually by the board of directors after discussion with and approval by the
management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. Valuers are normally rotated every three years. The
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management decides, after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation
technigues and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.,

The management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the change in
the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the
change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.,

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

* Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions.
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy.

¢ Investment in equity shares.

* Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost).

f. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. When significant parts of
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized
in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their
intended use at the balance sheet date. Items of stores and spares that meet the definition of
Property, Plant and equipment are capitalised at cost and depreciated over their useful life.
Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 except for assets where
management believes and based on independent technical evaluation, assets estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
Leasehold land is amortized over the lease period on a straight line basis.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the item of Property, Plant and
Equipment. The residual values, useful lives and pethods of depreciation of property, plant and
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equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The
depreciation rates charged are over following estimated useful lives

[ Assets Estimate Useful life

Right to use — Lease hold land 99 years
Right to use — building 9 years

Building 30 years
Plant & Machinery 15 years
Storage tank 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 22 years
Vehicles 10 years
Computers 8 years

Other Equipments 3 years

g. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost include acquisition and other incidental cost related to
acquiring the intangible asset. Research costs are expensed as incurred. Intangible development
costs are capitalised as and when technical and commercial feasibility of the asset is demonstrated
and approved by authorities, future economic benefits are probable. The costs which can be
capitalised include laboratory testing expenses that are directly attributable to development of the
asset for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

» The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available
for use or sale

Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of resources to complete the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

YVVVYY

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost
less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset
begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the
period of expected future benefit. Amortizas ense is recognised in the statement of profit and
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loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of
development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Assets Amortization Method Amortization period
Software licenses On Straight Line basis 5 years

Product licenses On Straight Line basis 5- 25 years

Usage rights On Straight Line basis 5 years

Intangible assets under development Expenditure incurred on acquisition /development of
intangible assets which are not ready for their intended use at balance sheet date are disclosed
under intangible assets under development.

h. Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are measured at cost less
impairment as per Ind AS 27- ‘Separate Financial Statements’.

Impairment of investments: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost
annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit and loss.
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the Investment is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the cost of the Investment. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in statement of profit or loss.

i. Impairment of Non — Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’'s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’'s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth
year.
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Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
surplus taken to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). For such properties, the impairment is
recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus

j- Financial Instrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. (A) Financial Asset Initial Recognition and
Measurement At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset or financial liability at
its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial asset or financial liability.

Debt instruments at amortized cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at its amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in other income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Deht instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and
foreign exchange gain or loss in the Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to Profit and Loss. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.
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In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’). The company has designated certain debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTOCI. For all other equity instruments, the company may
make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the
fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or The company has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the company could be required to repay.

impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:
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a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue
receivables’ in these financial statements)

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables and
- Other receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount.

(B) Financial Liabilities Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings. Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities. The measurement of
financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if the incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
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near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Loan and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liability for good and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, full
currency swaps and interest rate swaps contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest
rate risks respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Off-Setting Financial Instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the
counterparty.

k. Inventories

Stores and spares, packing materials and raw materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value and for this purpose, cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. However, the
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aforesaid items are not valued below cost if the finished products in which they are to be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Semi-finished products, finished products
and byproducts are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value and for this purpose, cost is
determined on standard cost basis which approximates the actual cost. Variances, exclusive of
abnormally low volume and operating performance, are adjusted to inventory. Traded goods are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a
weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

|. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as
an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

m. Retirement and other Employee benefits

Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme established under a State Plan. The contributions
to the scheme are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year when employee rendered
related services.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or
more of service gets a gratuity on post-employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each
completed year of service as per the rules of the Company. The aforesaid liability is provided for on
the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of the financial
year. The scheme is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The Company has other long-term employee benefits in the nature of leave encashment. The
liability in respect of leave encashment is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of the financial year. The aforesaid leave encashment
is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in the net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Liabilities for wages, salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
services are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are to be settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
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n. Accounting for taxes on income

Income taxes Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognhised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

0. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pretax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

p. Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. A contingent liability is a possible
obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed
in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

q. Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether

(i) the contract involves the use of identified asset;

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset
through the period of lease and

(iii) The Company has right to direct the use of the asset.

Where the Company is the lessee
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial

33




direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if
any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, and the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It
is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease payments have been classified as financing activities in Statement of Cash Flow.

The Company has elected not to recognise right of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term
leases that have a lease term of less than or equal to 12 months with no purchase option and assets
with low value leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense in statement of profit and loss over the lease term. The related cash flows are classified
as operating activities.

r. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period.

Diluted earnings per share
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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s. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short- term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
integral part of the Company’s cash management.

t. Dividend

The Company recognises a liability for dividends to equity holders of the Company when the
dividend is authorised and the dividend is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the
corporate laws in India, a dividend is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

u. Segment Reporting

Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief
Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates the resources based
on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and
transfers are reflected at market prices.

Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to
any business segment. Segment Policies: The Company prepares its segment information in
conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial
statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on
an appropriate basis.

v. New Standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted by the company

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with
those followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2021, except for the adoption of new standards effective or amendments to the existing
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as of April 01, 2021. The Company has not early adopted any
other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. The
Company applies, for the first time, following new interpretations and amendments w.e.f., April 01,
2021 and do not have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

a) Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116;

b) Amendment conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI;
c) Amendments to Ind AS 103: Business combination;

d) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions;

e) Amendments to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28;

** End of accounting policies **
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GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED

(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)

Notes to Financial Statements

6 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Gross Block (X in million)
Particulars Land Total
As at 1st April, 2020 181.68 181.68
Additions/deductions - -
Closing balance as at 31 March, 2021 181.68 181.68
Less : Classified as Non-Current Assets Held For Sale. (181.68) (181.68)
Closing balance as at 31st March 2022 - -
Depreciation and impairment (Xin million)
Particulars Land Total
As at 1st April, 2020 4.68 4.68
Charge for the year 2.30 2.30
Closing balance as at 31 March, 2021 6.98 6.98
Charge for the year 2.31 2.31
Less : Classified as Non-Current Assets Held For Sale. (9.29) (9.29)
Closing balance as at 31st March 2022 - -
Net Block ( X in million)
Particulars Land Total
As at 1st April, 2020 177.00 177.00
As at 31st March, 2021 174.70 174.70

As at 31st March 2022

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Investment Properties recognized as of the transition date

measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
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Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property (X in Million)
Particulars For the year ended 31st
March, 2022
Rental Income -
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that generate rental income -
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that did not generate rental income -
Profit from Investment Properties before Depreciation -
Less: Depreciation -
Profit from Investment Properties =
Particulars For the year ended 31st
March, 2020
Rental Income 12.99
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that generate rental income 0.34
Direct operating Expenses (including R & M) that did not generate rental income -
Profit from Investment Properties before Depreciation 12.66
Less: Depreciation 2.30
Profit from Investment Properties 10.36

The Company's Investment Properties consists of land. The Fair value of land was determined using the market comparable approach
based on recent market prices without any significant adjustments being made to the market observable data. The Fair value

measurements is categorized in level 2 or level 3 of Fair value hierarchy as appropriate.

Fair Value of the Investment Property
As at 31st March 2022
As at 31st March 2021

Z in Million
200.69
190.66

Z in Millien

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
March, 2022

Within one year

Later than one year but less than five years

Later than five years

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
March, 2021

Within one year

13.61

Later than one year but less than five years

Later than five years
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GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)
Notes to Financial Statements

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(X in million)

Particulars /Assets I Computer Software | Total
GROSS BLOCK
As at 1st April, 2020 - -
Additions 1.33 1.33

Deduction/Adjustments - -
As at 31st March, 2021 1.33 1.33
Additions 0.71 0.71

Deduction/Adjustments - +
As at 31st March ,2022 2.05 2.05

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
As at 1st April, 2020 - »

Charge for the year 0.07 0.07
Deduction/Adjustments -
As at 31st March, 2021 0.07 0.07
Charge for the year 0:32 0.32
Deduction/Adjustments - -
As at 31st March 2022 0.39 0.39
Net Block

As at 1st April, 2020 - -
As at 31st March, 2021 1.27 1.27
As at 31st March 2022 1.66 1.66

1. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its intangible assets
recognised as of transition date measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value
as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

2. The aggregate amortisation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and
amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3) The Company has not revalued any of its Intangible Assets during the current year as well as
during the previous year.




GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)
Notes to Financial Statements

8

10

11

Investments (% in million)
As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
Unquoted

Investments in Equity Instruments - Whether measured at
FVTPL
S.B.P.P. Co-op. Bank Ltd.

81 Equity Shares of X 25/- each 0.002 0.002 0.002
Total 0.002 0.002 0.002
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 0.002 0.002 0.002
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.002 0.002 0.002
Other Financial Assets (X in million)
X As at As at As at
Racticaiars 315t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
Security Deposits 18.45 15.98 13.41
Total 18.45 15.98 13.41
Other Non Current Assets (% in million)
N— As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated)
Capital advances 45.32 10.56 3.87
Balance with government authorities 0.01 0.01 0.01
Total 45.33 10.57 3.88
Inventories (X in million)
paveinalans As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
Raw Material 292.96 262.17 198.74
Work in Progress 170.26 109.62 74.08
Finished goods 2.16 21.46 45.34
Packing Material 5.79 11.87 10.69
Total 471.16 405.12 328.85
1.Invetories are offered as security to avail of the overdraft facilities from banks.
Trade Receivables (% in million)
As at As at

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

1st April, 2020

Unsecured, Considered good
Due from related Parties* (refer note 48)
Others- Due within 6 months

Undisputed 1,403.44 1,561.45 1,438.36
Disputed 6.58
Due for more than 6 months 121.40 117.96 34.11
Total 1,524.84 1,679.41 1,479.06
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12

13

14

* Trade receivables includes:

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2022

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
1st April, 2020

Due by firm in which Directors are Partners - 0.01 19.50
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment:
Particulars As at As at 31st March,| As at 1st April,
31st March, 2022 2021 2020
Less than 6 months 1,403.44 1,561.45 1,444.95
6 months to 1 year 31.03 74.94 7.04
1to 2 years 62.23 15.52 6.06
2 to 3 years 10.88 9.29 5.49
More than 3 years 17.26 18.21 15.51.
Total 1,524.84 1,679.41 1,478.49
Cash and Cash Equivalents (X in million)
. As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
Balances with banks in
current accounts 1.23 7.94 12.55
Other Bank Deposits for original maturity Less than 3
months 60.03 = -
Cash on hand 1.04 0.99 0.93
Total 62.30 8.93 13.48
Other Bank balances (% in million)
Kaal As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
Other Bank Deposits for original maturity more than 3 months - - =
upto 12 months (refer note 16.1)
Unclaimed dividend accounts
Bank Deposits (refer note below) 58.62 40.05 58.71
Total 58.62 40.05 58.71
Deposit are kept with bank as a margin money against Letter of credit /Buyer Credit facility utilised.
Loans (X in million)
' AG 8t As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated)
a. Loans to Employees
- Secured, Considered Good
(a) Loans Receivables considered good - Secured 5.13 2.56 6.27
ECL to be provided
c Total 5.13 2.56 6.27

1. Loans to employees are secured by way of hypothecation of house/ four wheeler/ two wheeler for which the loans

have been given.
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16

17

18

Financial Assets - Others (% in million)
As at As at As at
Particulars i
articula 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
Interest Accrued on deposits and loans 0.35 0.38 -
Other receivables 21.33 10.92 10.80
Total 21.67 11.30 10.80
Current Tax Assets (net) (X in million)
Keiat As at As at
Particul
articulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax Paid (Net of provision for tax) - - 66.77
Current Tax Liabilities - - -
Provision for Income Tax (Net of advance Tax) - - 54.64
Total - - 12.14
Other Current Assets (X in million)
As at As at
Particulars Asat 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
31st March, 2022 : bl
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with Government Authorities 29.94 34.87 43.38
Prepaid Expenses 18.36 4.38 2.21
Advances to vendors 364.81 167.84 46.63
Total 413.11 207.08 92.21
Assets classified as held for sale (X in million)
As at As at
Particulars ANE: 31st March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020
31st March, 2022 ! PE
Land and Building (Investment property) 173.55 - -
Total 173.55 - -

The resolution was passed and approved by the Board of Directors on August 16, 2021, for selling

the investment property.
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GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED
(Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :1U24231GJ1989PLC012892)
Notes to Financial Statements

19 Equity Share Capital {% In million)
. As at As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Authorised
3,50,00,000 Equity shares as on 31st March 2022 of face Value Rs 10/- per 350.00 81.5 81.5

share, 815,000 equity shares as on 31st March 2021 having FV of Rs 100/-
each and on 1.4.2020
Nil 10% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares as on 31st March - 0.75 0.75

2022, 7,500 10% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares as on 31st
March 2021 having FV of 100/- each and on 01.04.2020
Nil Unclassified Shares as on 31st March, 2022 and 2,500 Unclassified Shares - 0 0

as on 31st March 2021 of Rs. 100/- each and as on 01.04.2020

Total 350.00 82,25 82,25
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
2,01,54,750 as on 315t March 2022 Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs.10/- per 201.55 40.31 26.39

share, 4,03,095, Equity Shares as on 31st March 2021 having FV of Rs. 100/-
each fully paid up and 2,63,900 Equity Share as on 01.04.2020 having FV of

Rs. 100/- each fully paid up
Total 201,55 40.31 26.39

1. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period is as under

Particiilars No. of Shares Shlfe C:.u.)ital
(X in million}
As at 1st April, 2019 0.26 26.19
Additions/(Reductions) 0.00 0.20
As at 31st March,2020 0.26 26.39
As at 1st April, 2020 0.26 26.39
Shares issued pursuant to Business transfer 0.14 0.00
As at 31st March,2021 0.40 40.31
As at 1st April,2021 0.40 40.31
Effect of sub-division 4.03 40.31
Issue of bonus shares - 16.12 161.24
As at 31st March,2022 20.15 201.55
2. Details of Shareholder holding more than 5 percent share in Company: (% in million)
Particulars No. of shares % Holding

Shailesh Desai

As at March 31 2022 13.48 66.88%

As at March 31 2021 0.29 71.87%

As at March 31 2020 0.18 68.26%
Umang Desai

As at March 31 2022 3.33 16.51%

As at March 31 2021 0.07 16.51%

As at March 31 2020 0.05 17.46%
Nilima Desai

As at March 31 2022 1.04 5.18%

As at March 31 2021 0.02 5.18%

As at March 31 2020 0.01 4.42%
Polysol Financial Services LLP

As at March 31 2022 1:25 6.20%

As at March 31 2021 0.03 6.20%

As at March 31 2020 0.03 9.47%




3.5hares held by the promoters at the end of the year ended March 31,2022

Sr. no Promoter name No.of shares % of total shares Yeehange Ucring
the year
1 Shailesh Desai 1,34,79,550 66.88% 4.99%
2 Umang Desai 33,26,700 16.51% 0.00%
Shares held by the promoters at the end of the year ended March 31,2021
Sr.no Promoter name No.of shares % of total shares Yeshange:Ging
the year
1 Shailesih Desai 2,89,691 71.87 3.61%
Umang Desai 66,534 16.51 -0.95%

4. Right, Preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

For all matters submitted to vote in a shareholders meeting of the Company every holder of an equity share as reflected in the records of the
Company on the date of the shareholders meeting shall have one vote in respect of each share held. Any dividend declared by the Company
shall be paid to each holder of Equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to total equity shares outstanding as on that date. In
the event of liquidation of the Company all preferential amounts if any shall be discharged by the Company. The remaining assets of the
Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to the total equity shares outstanding
as on that date.

5. 139,195 equity shares of X 100/- each fully paid up, were issued pursuant to the Business transfer agreement of Urmi Polymer Industries and
Polysol Industries with the company in 2020-2021 and these shares were issued without payment being received in cash.

6. The Company has subdivided Equity Shares from the Face Value of T100 to %10 per Share from April 15, 2021. Accordingly the shares are
subdivided with effect from that date.

7. The Company has allotted 1,61,23,800 number of fully paid Bonus shares on 04/09/2021 in the ratio of four equity share of X10 each fully
paid up for every 1 existing equity shares of 10 each fully paid up.

20 Other Equity (X in million)
As at As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020

Securities Premium 327.24 486.98 187.64
Capital Redemption Reserve - 1.50 1.50
General Reserve 28.78 28.78 28.78
Revaluation Reserve ( Done in FY 2017-18) 174.76 174.76 174.76
Share application pending allotment pursuant to Business Transfer - - 313.26
Capital Reserve -Common Control -306.10 -306.10 -391.46
Retained Earnings 1,386.18 995.36 595.01
Total 1,610.87 1,381.29 909.49
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20.1 Particulars relating to Other Equity (X in million
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Securities Premium (Refer Note No.2)
Balance at the beginning of the year 486,98 187.64 184.16
Addition/(Deduction) during the year (159.74) 299.34 3.48
Balance at the end of the year 327.24 486.98 187.64
General Reserve (Refer Note No.3)
Balance at the beginning of the year 28.78 28.78 28.78
Addition/{Deduction) during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 28.78 28.78 28.78
Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.50 1.50 1,50
Addition/(Deduction) during the year (1.50) - .
Balance at the end of the year - 1.50 1.50
Cash subsidy
Balance at the beginning of the year -
Addition/(Deduction) during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year -
Share application pending allotment pursuant to Business Transfer
Balance at the beginning of the year 313.26 313.26
Addition/(Deduction) during the year - (313.26) -
Balance at the end of the year - - 313.26
Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year (306.10) (391.46) (388.08)
Addition/(Deduction) during the year - 85.37 (3.39)
Balance at the end of the year (306.10) (306.10) (391.46)
Revaluation Reserve
Balance at beginning of year 174.76 174.76 174.76
Balance at end of year 174.76 174.76 174.76
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 995.36 595.01 393.87
Profit after tax for the year 395.47 400.96 200.80
Add: f)thef comprehensh’-e income arising from re-measurement of defined (161) i6a _—
benefit obligation, net of income tax
Add: Difference of Employee Benefit paid and
(3.04)

booked
Balance at the end of the year 1,386.18 995.36 595.01

Total 1,610.87 1,381.29 909.49

20.2 Securities Premium is used to record the premium on issue of equity shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provision of the

Companies Act, 2013.

20.3 The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the General Reserve is
created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the

general reserve is not reclassified subsequently to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
20.4 Capital Reserve is on account of Business Combination

20.5 Revaluation reserve is a non-cash reserve created to reflect the true value of the asset when the market value of the certain category of asset is
more or less than the value of such asset at which it is recorded in the books of account.
20.6 Share application money pending allotment is with respect shares to be issued under business combination

21

Borrowings - Non-Current (X in million)
Particulars 1581 Asht e
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Secured

Term Loans F = -
From Banks 250.36 172.75 154.83
From Others 281.47 288.21 309.22

Unsecured = - -
less: Current maturities of Long term borrowings (112.72) (83.02) (123.78)
Total 419.11 377.94 340.27




21.1 Secured by hpothecation of inventory, book-debts and other receivable and charge on company's movable nad imovable properties.

22

23

The Carrying amount of assets hypothecated /mortgaged as security for borrowing limits are:

(% in million)
Particulars Asat As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
1. Inventories 471.16 405.12 328.85
2. Trade Receviables 1,524.84 1,679.41 1,479.06
3. Property Plant and Equipment 782.89 587.82 469.61
Total 2,778.89 2,672.35 2,277.52
Short term Lease
{X in million)
[March 31,2022 Opening Balance Cash Flows Non Cash CF Closing Balance
Short term Secured borrowings 379.37 117.94 - 497.31
Short term unsecured borrowings 14.10 - 14,10
Total libiliaties from Financing activities 393.47 117.94 - 511.41
March 31,2021 Opening Balance Cash Flows Non Cash Changes Closing Balance
Short term Secured borrowings 340.07 39.30 - 379.37
Short term unsecured barrowings 14.10 - 14.10
Total libiliaties from Financing activities 354.17 39.30 393.47
Provisions (X in million)
As at As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Provision for Employee benefits
Gratuity - 0.15
Unavailed Leave and compensated absences 0.23 0.23 0.18
Provision for Others (Note No. 27.2)
Provision for Product warranties
Provision for Liquadated losses
Provision for decommissioning
Income tax payable (net)
Total 0.23 0.23 0.32
Deferred tax Liabilities {net) (% in million)
Particulars Mt Asat Lol
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Deferred Tax Liabilities 48.87 35.58 29.19
Deferred Tax Assets 1.16 0.38 0.30
Total 47.71 35.21 28.89

For the year 2021-22

(% in million)

Particulars Opening Balance Recognized in Recognized in Other Closing Balance
Statement of Profit | Comprehensive
and Loss Income

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets 35.58 13.29 48.87
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 35.58 13.29 - 48.87
Deferred tax asset on account of:

Expenses allowed under tax on payment basis 0.38 0.07 0.72 1.16
Total Deferred Tax Assets 0.38 0.07 0.72 1.16
Net Deferred Tax 35.21 13.22 (0.72) 47.71
For the year 2020-21 (X in million)

Particulars

Opening Balance

Recognized in
Statement of Profit

Recognized in Other
Comprehensive

Closing Balance

and Loss Income

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets 29.19 6.39 35.58
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 29.19 6.39 - 35.58
Deferred tax asset on account of:

Expenses allowed under tax on payment basis 0.30 (0.13) 0.20 0.38
Total Deferred Tax Assets (0.13) 0.20 0.38
Net Deferred Tax 6.52 (0.20) 35.21
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Borrowings -Current (X in million})
Particulars As at As at "y
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020

Secured
Loans repayable on demand
Working Capital Loans 200.03 184.41 178.95
Buyers Credit 184,56 111.93 37.34
Unsecured - - -
From Others 14.10 14.10 14.10
Current maturities of long-term debt 112.72 83.02 123.78

Total 511.41 393.47 354.17

Secured Loans comprise of cash credit & short term loans from banks which are further secured by pledge of 1,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each held by a director (1 share in Shailesh Desai and other in the name of GPCL )

Secured by hpothecation of inventory, book-debts and other receivable and charge on company's movable nad imovable propoerties.

Trade Payables (% in million)
Particulars Asat As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 5 -
Others 723.93 BB6.95 899.06
Total 723.93 886.95 899.06
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment: (% in million)
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Less than 1 year 72393 886.95 899.06
1to 2 years - - -
2 to 3 years - -
More than 3 years - - -
Total 723.93 886.95 899.06

1. Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and conditions of the contract / purchase orders. The average credit period is 30 -

90 days.

2. The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The disclosures

relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as below:

Trade Payables -Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small Enterprises®

As at
31st March, 2022

As at

As at

Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
lier at th f each account r

31st March, 2021

1st April, 2020

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting vear;

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
\Development Act. 2006

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at of end of each accounting year

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise

*Based on the confirmation from Vendors.

Other Financial Liabilities

(X in million)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2022

As at

As at
1st April, 2020

Interest Payable on Loan
Expenses payahle
Deposits taken

0.59
10.76
3.04

31st March, 2021

5.85
3.10

88.55
3.12

Total

14.39

8.94

91.67
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GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED

{Formerly known as GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)

Notes to Financial Statements

30 Revenue from Operations (X in million)
Pl For the year ended 31st| For the year ended
March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Sale of Products
Manufactured goods 4,082.74 3,212.30
Traded goods
Trading of Chemicals 252.17 .
Edible Oil in Bulk - 562.50
Sale of Services
Jobwork Charges Received 2.63 5.66
Rent Income - 13.80
Other Operating Revenues
Scrap Sales 9.05 =
Export Incentives 1.03 1.81
Total 4,347.61 3,796.06
a) Revenue disaggregation based on customer type
i) Revenue disaggregation by geographical type is as follows:
Revenue Type 2021-22 2020-21
Domestic
Sale of Goods 4,248.71 3,717.20
Sale of Services 2.63 19.45
Sub-total 4,251.34 3,736.66
Exports
Sale of Goods 96.27 59.40
Sale of Services - -
Sub-total 96.27 59.40
Total 4,347 .61 3,796.06
b) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the
contracted price
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue as per contracted price 4,365.04 3,813.92
Adjustments
Sales return 13.23 15.92
Cash and other discount 4.20 1.94
Total revenue from contract with customers 4,347.61 3,796.06
¢) Contract assets and contract liabilities
The Company has recognised the following revenue-related contract assets and liabilities.
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Contract Assets - unbilled revenue -
Advance from customers 8.57 12.02

d) Information about major customers
For information about major customer refert note { Related to segment reporting)

e) Performance obligation Information about the Company’s performance obligations are
summarised below
The performance obligation is satisfied upon dispatch of goods from the company's
premises / delivery of goods to the customer in accordance with the term
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31

32

33

34

3

v

36

37

Other Income

(% in million)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost

Interest on deposit with bank 1.86 2.96
Others 0.39 0.84
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation - 2.88
Scarp sale of Plant & Machinery 13.00 -
Sundry balance written back 1.74 1.55
Other Income 0.03 0.02
Short Term Gain on Sale of Vehicle 0.08 -
Total 17.08 8.26
Cost of materials consumed (T in million)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Consumption of Raw Materials 3,001.01 2,233.19
Total 3,001.01 2,233.19
(% in million)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Raw materials consumed (including packing materials)
Opening Stock 274,03 211.85
Add : Purchases (Net) 3,025.72 2,295.37
Less : Closing Stock 298.75 274,03
Total 3,001.01 2,233.19
Purchase of Stock in Trade (% in million)
Barticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Purchase of stock in trade - -
Trading of Chemicals 217.31
Edible Oil in Bulk - 555.64
Total 217.31 555.64
Changes In Inventories (X in million)
Pt For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Opening stock:
Work-in-progress 109.62 72.84
Finished goods 21.46 4415
Total (A) 131.08 116.99
Closing stock:
Work-in-progress 170.26 109.62
Finished goods 2.16 21.46
Total (B) 172.41 131.08
Total(A-B) (41.33) (14.09)
Employee Benefits Expense (X in million)
Pt For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Salaries, Wages and Bonus (Refer note 48) 124.84 66.90
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 5.33 2.46
Staff welfare expenses 2.89 1.51
Total 133.06 70.88
Finance Costs (% in million}
paticalaes For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest on:
Borrowings from banks 63.13 60.57
Others 6.62 6.94
Loan processing fees and bank charges 9.65 9.86
Total 79.40 77.37
Depreciation and amortisation expense (T in million)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particians 31stMarch, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment ( Refer note 4) 39.26 28.51
Depreciation on Investment Property ( Refer note 5) - 2.30
Amortisation of Intangible assets ( Refer note 6) 0.32 0.07
Total 39.59 30.88
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38 Other Expenses (X in million)
For the year ended For the year ended
Matinuiats 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Consumption of stores & spares parts 363 23
Laboratory Expenses 087 1.23
Effluent Treatment Charges 0.95 119
Notified Area Charges 0.75 1.22
Power and fuel 158.77 113.08
Loading & Unloading & Weighting charges 6.74 319
Water Charges 1.06 0.64
Security Charges 1.90 -
Exchange fluctuation (net) 2.10 -
Insurance 5.96 3.89
Legal expenses 10.28 17.58
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - Net 4.69 0.96
General Office Expenses 0.90 0.26
Payment to Auditors 0.48 0.48
Rent, Rates & stamp duty, Taxes 26.98 20.90
Travelling and conveyance 212 1.35
Repairs
- Buildings 131 1.35
- Machinery 20.53 24.75
- Others 13.95 13.14
Professional Tax 0.00 0.00
Advertising/Sales promotion 0.70 1.11
Commission on Purchase 0.02 0.10
Commission to selling agents 6.73 4.16
Doubtful and bad debts 5.12 1.10
Clearing & Forwaring Expenses 6.19 2.78
Miscellaneous expenses (as per 39.1) 10.67 6.15
Freight & Forwarding,packing Expenses 114.27 84.91
Total 407.66 307.62
39.1. Miscellaneous expenses {T in million)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Printing and stationery 1.79 1.00
Membership & Subscription 0.07 0.02
Drainage Charges 0.08 0.05
Miscellaneous expenses 0.00 0.00
Postage, telephone etc. 0.80 0.52
Charity & Donation / CSR Expenses 6.73 378
Computer Expenses 1.19 0.79
10.67 6.15
(i) Payment to auditors has been classified below (Excluding Taxes): (T in million)
For the year ended For the year ended
Rerticylury 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
(a) Auditor, 0.20 0.20
(b) For taxation matters, 0.15 0.15
() For company law matters, - -
{d) For other services, 0.13 0.13
(e) For reimbursement of expenses - -
Total 0.48 0.48
(i) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities:
Gross amount of CSR expenditure required to be spent and actually spent are as follows: (X in million)
sl For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 6.47 372
CSR Spent 6.73 3.72
Details of CSR expenditure are as follows: (% in million)
" For the year ended For the year ended
i 31stMarch, 2022 | 31stMarch, 2021
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
Paid in cash - 2.00
Yet to be paid in cash - -
(i) For purpose other than (i} above 6.73 1,72
Total 6.73 3.72
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a)

b)

c)

d)

{% in million)

Name of Project

Item of activities as

For the year ended

For the year ended

per Schedule 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Ashadham Seva Mandal Promoting Education 5.00
A ices Trai Al h
ppr‘entxces raining Over and Above the statutory skill and Training 133
requirements
Contribution to the
PM CARES Fi ;
S fund set up by the L
Central Government
P ing Health
ROTARY FOUNDATION (INDIA) romoting Health : 0.64
Care and Promoting
Education
ing H
SHREYASH MEDICARE Eramoting Heoih . 0.25
Care
Traini
SAVLI TALUKA RIFLE ASSOCIATION S]r)at::\;:g Y D 050 2.00
ROTARY SHAIKSHANIK AND TABIBI SEVA SAHAYAK Promoting Health 0.15
MANDAL Care i
Promoting Heal
ROTARY CHARITABLE TRUST VAPI Caté oting th ) 0.53
TINKU MEMORIAL TRUST Animal Welfare ] 0.05
Total CSR 6.73 3.72
Tax Expense (% in million)
pattletifars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Current tax in relation to:
Current years 128.07 135.34
Deferred Tax
In respect of current year 13.22 6.52
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 141,29 141,86

The major components of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:

Income ax expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(% in million)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
i} Current tax
Current tax for the year 131.02 135.34
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 131.02 - 135.34
i) Deferred tax
(Decrease) / Increase in deferred tax liabilities 13.22 6.52
(Decrease) / Increase in deferred tax assets 5 13.22 - 6.52
Total tax expense 144,24 141.86
Income ax expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income
(X in million)
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
i) Current tax 0.54 0.20
ii) Deferred tax
Remeasurement gain | (loss) on defined benefit plans -
Total 0.54 0.20
The reconciliation between the Statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax rate of the Company
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
a) Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
b) Differences due to
i) Losses
ii) Non-deductible expenses 0.00% 0.00%
iii) Others 0.00% 0.00%
Effective income tax rate 0.00% 0.00%

No aggregate amounts of current and deferred tax have arisep ig

Profit and Loss or other comprehensive income

gporting periods which have been recognised in equity and not in Statement of
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40

a1

22

Current tax assets (net)

(% in million)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Opening balance -12.14
Add/(Less): Tax paid in advance, net of provisions during
the year - 12.14
Closing balance 2 0.00
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(% in million)
As at 31st March, Recognised in As at 31st March,
Particulars
2022 Profit & Loss 0cCl | Equity 2021
Deferred tax liability on account of
Property, plant and equipment 48.88 13.29 - 35.59
Total deferred tax liabilities 48.88 13.29 - 35.59
Deferred tax assets on account of
Expenses allowed under tax on payment basis 1.16 0.07 0.72 0.38
Total deferred tax assets 1.16 0.07 0.72 0.38
Net deferred tax liabilities 47.71 13.36 0.72 35.21
As at 31st March, Recognised in As at 315t March,
Particulars
2021 Profit & Loss 0« | Equity 2020
Deferred tax liability on account of
Property, plant and equipment 35.59 6.39 - 29.19
Total deferred tax liabilities 35.59 6.39 - 29.19
Deferred tax assets on account of
Expenses allowed under tax on payment basis 0.38 (0.13) 0.20 0.30
Total deferred tax assets 0.38 (0.13) 0.20 0.30
Net deferred tax liabilities 35.21 6.27 0.20 29,49
Profit from discontinued Operations (% in million)
Partitiilars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Gross Income Rent 14.49 -
Municiple Taxes ,water charges and driange charges 0.47 -
Depreciation of Investment property 2.31 -
Total 11.72 -
Other Comprehensive Income (% in millian)
For the year ended
31st March, 2021
For the year ended
Particul
Bl 31st March, 2022
A - Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans {2.16) (0.81)
Income tax related to above 0.54 0.20
(1.61) (0.60]
Total (1.61) (0.60)
Earnings Per Share To be updated (% in million)
Partieulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Profits available to equity shareholders (in millions) 395.47 400.96
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
Basic 2,01,54,750 1,89,94,792
Diluted 2,01,54,750 2,01,54,750
Earnings Per Equity Share having face value of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Basic In Rupees 19,62 21.11
Diluted In Rupees 19.62 19.89
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GUIJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED

(Formerly known as GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)

Notes to Financial Statements

“46 Segment Information

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing activity of agro chemicals, construction chemicals &
leather chemicals etc. The Board of Directors being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates
the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance
indicators by industry classes. All operating segments operating results are reviewed regularly by CODM
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. CODM
believes that these are governed by same set of risks and returns hence, CODM reviews them as one
component. Further, the economic environment in which the Company operates is significantly similar
and not subject to materially different risk and rewards. The revenues, total expenses and net profit as
per the Statement of profit and loss represents the revenue, total expenses and net profit of the sole
reportable segment.

A Geographical information

The geographical information analyses the Company's revenue by the Company's country of domicile (i.e.
India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based
on the geographical location of the customer and segment assets which have been based on the

Revenue from operations

(X in million)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Revenue from external customers

India 4,164.40 3,152.89
Rest of the world 170.51 621.90
Total 4,334.91 3,774.80

46 Information about major customer.

Details of transactions of more than Rs 10 Crore

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Customer 1 517.15 337.55
Customer 2 411.76 230.17
Total 928.91 567.72
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GUJARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS LIMITED

(Formerly known as GUIARAT POLYSOL CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED) (CIN :U24231GJ1989PLC012892)

Notes to Financial Statements

47 Commitments and Contingent Liahilities

(X in million)
Asat As at As at

P

articulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 | 31st March, 2020
i) Capital Commitments

Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to executed on
capital account and not provided for - - -
ii) Contingent liabilities
Guarantee Deposits with Banks 11.01 3.21 3.21
Letter of Credit not accepted till date 125.44 72.64 117.77
Income Tax Matters 2.38 2.85 0.00
Excise & GST Matters 14.30 14.30 0.00
Total 153.13 93.00 120.98
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